
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Commercial Revenue 
Committee

Agenda
Monday 1 April 2019 

The meeting will start at the raising of Cabinet which starts at 7pm 
Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall

MEMBERSHIP

Administration:
Councillor Max Schmid
Councillor Ben Coleman

CONTACT OFFICER: Kayode Adewumi, 
Head of Governance and Scrutiny
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 2499
E-mail: Kayode.Adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk

Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy

Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building.

Date Issued: 22 March 2019

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Commercial Revenue Committee
Agenda
1 April 2019

Item Pages

1.  APPOINTMENT OF A CHAIR 
To appoint a Chair for the meeting.

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item,
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or
as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is
discussed and any vote taken.

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration.
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a
dispensation to that effect has.

4.  OLD OAK HOUSING ASSOCIATION – AGREEMENT TO DEED OF 
TERMINATION OF INDEPENDENCE AGREEMENT 

3 - 8



London Borough of Hammersmith
& Fulham

COMMERCIAL REVENUE COMMITTEE

MONDAY 1 APRIL 2019

Old Oak Housing Association – Agreement to Deed of Termination of 
Independence Agreement

Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing – Cllr Lisa Homan

Open Report

Classification – For Decision
Key Decision: Yes

Wards Affected: College Park and Old Oak

Accountable Director: Jo Rowlands, Strategic Director Growth and Place

Report Author: David Burns, Assistant 
Director - Growth

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8753 6090
E-mail: david.burns@lbhf.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. The Old Oak Housing Association (OOHA), the managing agent for Peabody on the 
Old Oak Estate in East Acton, has decided that it no longer needs to operate following 
the amalgamation of Family Mosaic and Peabody.

1.2. The OOHA was set up following a stock transfer from the Council. The Council is a 
member of the company, has a representative on the Board, and was a signatory to 
the original agreement to set the company up.

1.3. This report asks the Commercial Revenue Committee to agree to sign a Deed of 
Termination of Independence Agreement, which would allow the company to be wound 
up.

1.4. Tenants’ rights and rents would not be affected, and the Old Oak Children’s and 
Community Centre would still operate.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Commercial Revenue Committee:

2.1. approve to the signing of   a Deed of Termination of Independence agreement to allow 
the Old Oak Housing Association Ltd. management company to be wound up.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



3. Background and Reasons for Decision

3.1. A stock transfer of the land with 628 homes and the Old Oak Community Centre on 
the Old Oak Estate in East Acton from the Council to Family Mosaic housing 
association was completed on 17th March 1999, following a successful tenant ballot.

3.2. As part of the stock transfer, the Council and Family Mosaic set up Old Oak Housing 
Association Ltd. (OOHA); a company limited by guarantee and a registered housing 
association. The company was set up specifically to manage the homes on the Old 
Oak Common Estate and was a subsidiary of Family Mosaic. 

3.3. The Council is a member of the company and has a representative on the Board, as 
the Council’s member. The OOHA is governed by an Independence Agreement, which 
the Council is a signatory to. The agreement sets out the principles for the control of 
the company. It covered funding, business planning, voting rights and the rights of 
members generally, and rules for providing information such as annual accounts. 

3.4. The OOHA does not own the homes or the Community Centre and is in effect the 
managing agent. The landlord for tenants and leaseholders was Family Mosaic, and 
subsequently Peabody Trust. 

3.5. Following a consultation process with residents and other stakeholders, and approval 
from the Social Housing Regulator, Family Mosaic merged with Peabody through 
Family Mosaic joining the Peabody Group on 30th June 2017. 

3.6. On March 29th 2018 Peabody was renamed Peabody Trust 2018 and amalgamated 
with Family Mosaic Housing and Gallions Housing Association to form a new charitable 
community benefit society, and parent entity, called Peabody Trust.

3.7. The Old Oak Housing Association (OOHA) has a management Board comprising of 
three residents, three Peabody nominees and one Council nominee. The Board is 
responsible for overseeing the company’s activities, which are limited to the 
management of the homes, and rent collection, with the rent paid to Peabody by OOHA 
minus the cost of management. While the stock was being refurbished following stock 
transfer it had more responsibility, but at present its role is limited.

3.8. The OOHA Board agreed (including the Council’s nominated board member) in April 
2018 that it should consult residents on a proposal that OOHA should no longer 
operate as a separate company and that it should be fully incorporated into Peabody 
Trust. This would mean that the OOHA board would no longer need to exist.

3.9. A consultation exercise was held for six weeks from 4th June 2018, with no negative 
comments or objections to the proposals. Therefore, on 30th July 2018 the OOHA 
Board agreed to proceed with the winding up of OOHA’s role as managing agent.

3.10. In order for the OOHA to be wound up, a Deed of Termination of Independence 
Agreement must be executed by authorised parties. The OOHA Board authorised any 
two Board Members to do this.

3.11. The Council as a member of the Company and signatory to the Independence 
Agreement is required to sign the Deed of Termination of Independence Agreement in 
order for the company to be wound up, and this report seeks authority to do this.

Page 4



3.12. The rights of tenants, the process for setting rents and the operation of the community 
centre remains the same. Residents will also continue to be involved in local decision 
making.

3.13. There are some existing contracts in relation to the Old Oak Community Centre and 
these will be novated to Peabody.

4. Proposals

4.1. The OOHA Board has agreed to wind up the OOHA and close the Board. The Council 
as a member of the Company is being asked to also agree to wind up OOHA and sign 
a Deed of Termination of Independence Agreement to put that into effect.

4.2. Future management of the Old Oak Estate would be the responsibility of Peabody 
Trust. Peabody made an offer to residents as part of the consultation process. This is 
summarised below.

Peabody proposal to Old Oak Estate residents

4.3. Local Homes and Services

a) Local office and locally based staff would remain
b) Residents continue to be involved in services and consultation on services
c) No changes to rent, tenancy rights or way services are delivered

4.4. Community Centre

a) Will continue to be supported and have its own management committee and staff
b) Guaranteed financial support from Peabody for 5 years
c) Ownership of the lease transferred to Peabody Community Foundation, meaning 

it will remain a charitable use in perpetuity

4.5. Local Resident Involvement

a) A local resident’s services panel will be established

4.6. Other Commitments
a) Rent setting remains the same
b) Tenancy agreement remains the same
c) Peabody is the landlord
d) Peabody won’t sell empty homes to raise income

4.7. In addition to these proposals, under the transfer arrangements the Council placed 
restrictive covenants on the land at Old Oak Common including restrictions on how the 
rent is set and on the use of the land for affordable housing in perpetuity, save for 
exempt disposals (i.e. right to buy). This means that the way rents are set is governed 
by the target rent regulations, keeping rents affordable.

4.8. There are also restrictive covenants on the land for the community and children’s 
centre, meaning these uses must continue in perpetuity.
 

4.9. Residents will experience no material difference in management and operation of the 
estate and will continue to be involved in local decision making.

Page 5



5. Options Considered

5.1. There are only two options for the Council

a) Sign the Deed of Termination of Independence Agreement so that OOHA can be 
wound up

b) Not sign the Deed

5.2. Signing the Deed would enable the OOHA Company to be wound up and for Peabody 
to implement the proposals in their offer to residents, and simplify the governance 
arrangements.

5.3. There is no benefit to the Council of not signing the Deed. While the Board would 
continue in its current form, this would offer limited benefits to residents. 

6. Consultation

6.1. Following the decision of the OOHA Board in April 2018, Peabody consulted with 
residents on the proposals.

6.2. The consultation was completed from 4th June 2018 to 15th July 2018, and responses 
were considered from 16th July to 29th July.

6.3. No objections were received during the consultation, therefore the OOHA board 
resolved on 30th July 2018 to proceed with the winding up of OOHA.

7. Equality Implications

7.1. It is not anticipated that the winding up of the OOHA management company will have 
any negative impact on any groups with protected characterisitics, under the terms of 
the Equality Act 2010.

7.2. Implications completed by Peter Smith, Head of Policy & Strategy, tel. 020 8753 2206.

8. Legal Implications

8.1. The Council is currently a member of Old Oak Housing Association Limited. The report 
is seeking approval to sign the deed of termination of the Independence Agreement 
dated 17 March 1999. The Independence Agreement records the manner in which the 
company will be controlled and managed.

8.2. The effect of signing the deed of termination of the Independence Agreement is that 
the Council will lose all the control and voting rights it currently retains as a member. 
The Council will also be released from its duties and obligations under the 
Independence Agreement. 

8.3. The subject matter of the report requires a decision to be taken by the Commercial 
Revenue Committee in accordance with the Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution under 
the Committee Terms of Reference.  

Implications provided by: Hannah Ismail, Solicitor, Sharpe Pritchard LLP, external legal 
advisers seconded to the Council tel 0207 405 4600                                       

Page 6



9. Financial Implications

9.1. There are no direct Financial Implications for the Council arising from this proposal.

9.2. Implications completed by Emily Hill, Assistant Director, Corporate Finance, 
telephone 020 8753 3145.

10. Commercial Implications

10.1. There are no procurement implications resulting from this report.

Implications verified/completed by Andra Ulianov, Procurement Consultant, x2284

11. IT Implications

11.1 IT Implications:  There are no apparent IT implications resulting from the proposal in 
this report

11.2 IM Implications: If the Council is required to share or transfer sensitive information as 
a result of signing the Deed Of Termination Agreement, a Privacy Impact Assessment 
should be completed to ensure all potential data protection risks in relation to this proposal 
are properly assessed with mitigating actions agreed and implemented.

11.3 Implications verified/completed by: Karen Barry, Strategic Relationship Manager, 
020 8753 3481

12. Implications for Business

12.1. There are no implications for business arising from this report.

12.2. Implications completed/verified by: Albena Karameros, Economic 
Development Team, 07739 316 957.

13. Risk Management Implications

13.1. Good governance requires that an orderly winding down of the company is 
undertaken in accordance with management of our corporate risk 11, decision 
making, maintaining reputation and service standards including good governance, 
conduct and external inspections. Independent Assurance on Peabody is 
conducted through the Regulator of Social Housing and the Charity Commission. 
Peabody attained Government regulatory judgements of G1 for Governance in 
November 2018 which describes the Regulator of Social Housing's view of how well 
Peabody Trust is meeting regulatory standards for governance and viability.  

13.2. The risks to the Council of agreeing to sign the Deed of Termination are limited 
– it is following a clear process in doing so. There are some hypothetical risks to 
tenants, but these are clearly mitigated as set out below.

Risk and Impact Mitigation 
Tenant’s tenancy rights are affected and 
they have less secure tenancies

Tenancies are unchanged by the decision 
to wind up OOHA

Tenants rents are increased The rent formula remains the same and 
restrictions on title prevent Peabody from 
deviating from the agreed rent policy.

Page 7



Community and Children’s Centre is closed Restrictions on title mean it can only be 
used for community purposes, a transfer to 
the Peabody Community Foundation gives 
it more certainty, and Peabody have 
committed to five years of revenue funding.

Residents will have no say in services Peabody have committed to a local panel 
for services, taking a similar form to the 
board.

13.3 Impications verified by Michael Sloniowski Risk manager and Being Ruthlessly 
Financially Efficient Lead. Audit, risk, fraud and insurances service
020 8753 2587

14. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT

None

Page 8


	Agenda
	4 OLD OAK HOUSING ASSOCIATION – AGREEMENT TO DEED OF TERMINATION OF INDEPENDENCE AGREEMENT

